Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth
Leol

Lleoliad: Cynulliad
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Dyddiad: National
Dydd Mercher, 15 lonawr 2014 VAVSaSIS;“bly for

g C7

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Leanne Hatcher

Dirpwry Clerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8032
pwyllgor.CCLII@cymru.gov.uk

Agenda

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod (09.00-09.15)

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

2 Bil Tai (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 2 Sefydliad Tai
Siartredig Cymru (09:15-10:30) (Tudalennau 1 - 9)

Keith Edwards, Cyfarwyddwr

Anne Delaney, Aelod o'r Bwrdd ac Arweinydd Polisi

10.30 - 10.45 - Egwyl

3 Bil Tai (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 3 Cymdeithas
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (10:45-12:00) (Tudalennau 10 - 27)

Y Cynghorydd Dyfed Edwards, Llefarydd Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru ar Dai,
ac Arweinydd Cyngor Gwynedd

Naomi Alleyne, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai

Sue Finch, Swyddog Polisi Tai

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y



cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: Eitem 5

5 Trafod adroddiad ynghylch ymchwiliad i lefelau cyfranogiad
mewn chwaraeon (12:00-12:30) (Tudalennau 28 - 71)

6 Papurau i'w nodi (Tudalennau 72 - 83)



Eitem 2

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-01-14 Paper 1
Housing (Wales) Bill

Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru
4 Purbeck House

Lambourne Crescent

Cardiff Business Park

Llanishen

Cardiff

CF14 5GJ

Tel: (029) 2076 5760

Evidence Submission to

The National Assembly for Wales

Communities, Equality and
Local Government Committee
January 2013

Consultation on the Housing (Wales)
Bill

Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru

The Chartered Institute of Housing is the only professional organisation representing all
those working in housing. Its purpose is to maximise the contribution that housing
professionals make to the well-being of communities.

In Wales, we aim to provide a professional and impartial voice for housing across all
sectors to emphasise the particular context of housing in Wales and to work with
organisations to identify housing solutions.

For further information on this response please contact
Julie Nicholas, Policy & Public Affairs Manager
at the above address or email julie.nicholas@cih.org

Tudalen 1



Introduction

CIH welcomes the opportunity to present evidence to the Communities, Equality and
Local Government Committee for stage 1 scrutiny of the Housing (Wales) Bill.

CIH is the professional body for people working in housing and communities, with over

22,000 members across the UK, Ireland, Canada and Asia Pacific.

Our mission is to

maximise the contribution that our members make to the well being of communities.

We have provided written submissions to previous consultations on issues relating to the
Bill and this paper draws heavily from these. In relation to the Bill itself, our response is
informed by feedback from our members, our knowledge of the sector and expertise from
our policy and practice teams.

General Comments

CIH Cymru supports the development of Welsh policies, practices and legislation that aim
to address the key housing challenges we face. We promote a one housing system
approach that:

places the delivery of affordable housing at the top of national, regional and local
strategies;

secures investment to ensure the high and sustainable quality of all homes;

promotes the concept of housing led regeneration to capture the added value that
housing brings in terms of economic, social and environmental outcomes;

recognises the central role of Welsh Government as the housing ‘system steward’ to
deliver an integrated housing system that encompasses all sectors and tenure
options;

recognises that meeting the housing needs of our communities is a key aspect of
tackling inequality and poverty;

ensures that that there are properly resourced support service in place to prevent
homelessness and protect the most vulnerable;

supports the key role of local authorities as strategic housing enablers;

utilises the existing housing stock, including initiatives to bring the wasted resource of
empty homes back into use;

uses current and potential financial powers to intervene in housing markets and
provide more homes, including the development of innovative funding models.

supports the development of new models of ownership and control, including co-
operative housing.

Tudalen 2



Specific Issues

In relation to the terms of reference of the inquiry we have addressed each issue in turn:

1. The general principles of the Housing (Wales) Bill and the need for
legislation

a) Compulsory registration and licensing scheme for all private rented sector
landlords and letting and management agents

CIH Cymru has a strong track record of advocating the integration of the Private Rented
Sector (PRS) into the housing system and broadly welcomes the content of this Bill and
the aim of modernising and improving the sector in Wales. We believe this is an exciting
opportunity to ensure that the sector is fit for purpose, and to encourage inclusive
partnership working, improve outcomes for tenants and landlords, build knowledge and
understanding about the sector, and grow a healthy Welsh PRS. We have developed a
number of services to support the professional development of the sector and are keen to
work alongside Government and others to deliver.

We acknowledge that issues of the quality of management and accommodation are not
the exclusive preserve of the PRS and that the majority of individual landlords and agents
act responsibly. However, evidence from local authorities and advice services is that many
PRS tenants are vulnerable to poor property condition, bad management and

insecurity of tenure. In general therefore, CIH Cymru endorses an approach based on an
appropriate balance of sanctions and incentives, supported by appropriate resources for
those undertaking the implementation of the scheme.

We support Welsh Government’s commitment to progressing the 2008 Rugg Review
recommendations and those of the Communities and Culture Committee 2010 report,
which recommended a national mandatory licencing scheme to regulate private landlords
and letting and management agents.

This approach will advance consumer protection, help target the worst properties and
providers, and reinforce the key role of local authorities in overseeing good quality housing
standards. Raising standards in the sector, mapping supply more accurately, and forging
positive inter-sectoral relationships are critical if other PRS-related proposals in the bill are
to be successful, such as the homelessness discharge of duty into the PRS.

We therefore specifically endorse the proposals in the Bill for:

e all private landlords and agents to register and become licensed,;

e |ocal authorities to collaborate to establish and administer a national scheme and to
be responsible for any enforcement action;

e agents to become members of an approved body at registration as the means of
progressing to becoming licensed.

Tudalen 3



CIH Cymru also supports’ the proposals in the Renting Homes White Paper to undertake
tenancy reform and provide a clear rental framework in Wales, through the introduction of
standard contracts in the private rented sector and other proposals including changes to
shared tenancies that should reduce administration costs and give greater flexibility to
occupants.

Further, we feel strongly that tenants deserve the same rights of protection, standards and
information, regardless of whether their landlord operates a large, professional business or
is an ‘accidental’ or ‘reluctant’ sole-trader.

We would also propose a co-production approach to implementation (involving
Government, landlord representative bodies, tenant organisations and local authorities) as
adopted in relation to the RSL sector following the recommendations of the Essex Review.
CIH Cymru further believes it might be prudent to implement changes on a roll-out basis,
to manage resources and capacity. We would support a roll-out that targets letting and
managing agents first, with individual landlords being required to register within a
reasonable timescale later.

b) Reform of homelessness law, including placing a stronger duty on local
authorities to prevent homelessness and allowing them to use suitable
accommodation in the private sector

Homelessness prevention services are a better investment of scarce resources than the
provision of reactive services, in terms of the health and well being of households,
reducing levels of homelessness and value for money. CIH Cymru welcomes the adoption
of this ‘preventative’ approach into legislation.

Many local authorities have already successfully implemented such an approach, and
have, as a consequence, reduced the likelihood of a homelessness experience for many
individuals and families. Recent statistics? show that homeless acceptances fell by 11 per
cent during 2012-13 and this decrease has continued into the first half of 2013-14. This
seems to underline the efficacy of this approach in challenging times.

However, we agree with Government on the need for caution when analysing current data,
not least because of the on going challenges of welfare reform, tighter public sector
budgets and wider economic difficulties, but also because, whilst the number of homeless
acceptances has decreased during 2012-13, the number of applications has risen
compared with the previous year.

The number of households living in the PRS in Wales is projected to overtake the number
living in social housing in the next two years and is projected® to reach 20% of total stock
by 2020. We believe the discharge of homelessness duty into the PRS is a logical policy
adjustment to broaden housing options for vulnerable individuals and homeless families as
long as this is undertaken in conjunction with raising standards and consumer rights in the
PRS under other provisions of the Bill.

1
http://www.cih.org/publication-free/display/vpathDCR//templatedata/cih/publication-

free/data/MWales/Consultation response to Homes for Wales white paper

2 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/nomelessness/?lang=en

3 Tenure Trends in the UK Housing System: Will the private rented sector continue to grow? Ben Pattison with Diane Diacon and
Jim Vine, Building and Social Housing Foundation: 2010

Tudalen 4



We specifically endorse the proposals in the Bill to:

ensure a greater emphasis on the ‘prevention’ duties of local authorities;

improve services to those deemed not in priority need;

improve the ability of authorities to offer accommodation through the PRS;

improve co-operation between authorities and RSLs by strengthening the duty to
co-operate to both prevent and relieve homelessness;

e provide greater protection for children experiencing homelessness by introducing a
provision that households with children found to be intentionally homeless* will still
have a right to the full homelessness duty, provided that it is the first time that they
have been found to be intentionally homeless within the past five years.

We have concerns about:

Changes to priority need for former prisoners. \We believe that services that work
with perpetrators and aim to reduce re-offending rates are as fundamental to public
protection as services that focus on supporting and protecting victims. It is important
that delivery and development of homelessness services and housing access are
based on need, vulnerability and evidence, rather than public perceptions and
subjective views on how to treat ‘deserving’ and ‘undeserving’ groups of people. Two
concerns about the current situation are raised in the original consultation document,
firstly that there is no evidence to support the effectiveness of the priority need status
for former prisoners in Wales and the extent to which it has made a positive impact,
and secondly that previous research has highlighted ‘perverse incentives’ of
homelessness legislation as a route to social housing. We would suggest that further
research could be undertaken to ascertain the effectiveness or otherwise of the current
situation or a pilot could be undertaken, to ascertain the impact of the pilot before it is
rolled out nationally. In addition, the proposed change to the discharge of
homelessness duty into the private rented sector should deal with concerns regarding
applicants motivated by easier access to social housing.

Strengthening links to housing-related support services. CIH Cymru supports the
target of greater protection for children at risk of homelessness. However we would
suggest that this is linked to the development of appropriate housing-related services,
providing intensive family support, to ensure that those households experiencing
difficulty in sustaining tenancies (often due to multiple and complex issues), are
supported in a multi-agency context. Cost benefit analysis of the Lasting Solutions
programme evidenced more than a fourfold net return on investment in intensive
support services® and the recent Louise Casey report® for the UK Government
concludes the behaviours and problems of ‘troubled families’ can be properly
understood only by providing a holistic family-focussed service, to restore functionality.

* Para 4.20 in Explanatory memorandum for Housing (Wales) Bill.
> Charter Housing/SOLAS Lasting Solutions Outcome Evaluation Final Report; Cordis Bright Consulting: October 2011

http://www.charterhousing.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2012/01/FIP-OUTCOME-EVALUATION-REPORT-FINAL.pdf

[accessed August 2012]

Listening to Troubled Families; Louise Casey CB, Department for Communities and Local Government; July 2012

http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/communities/pdf/2183663.pdf [accessed August 2012]

Tudalen 5



c) A duty on local authorities to provide sites for Gypsies and Travellers where a
need has been identified

Not only is there an evidenced need for additional Gypsy and Traveller sites in Wales, but
improvements are required to some existing sites in terms of quality and addressing
environmental and locational issues. CIH Cymru believes that a statutory duty on Local
Authorities where there is clear need will help to address issues relating to local public and
political opposition and therefore improve deliverability and equality outcomes.

d) Standards for local authorities on rents, service charges and quality of
accommodation

CIH Cymru believes that all current and future social housing should meet the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard and welcomes the requirement that all local authority and RSL
social housing should meet WHQS by 2020 and that this standard is maintained
thereafter. The clarity this will provide will also afford an opportunity for increased
openness, accountability and independent scrutiny.

We welcome the proposals to ensure that local authorities set rents within a sound,
transparent and justifiable policy and financial framework that reflects the type, size,
location and quality of the property. We also support the inclusion of service charges within
the provisions of the Bill and the move to a more justifiable system, where tenants not in
receipt of certain services will no longer have to contribute financially to them through their
rents.

We welcome the proposed requirement to comply with a rents and service charges
standard, and for the responsibility to monitor compliance with this to rest with Welsh
Government.

We recognise the value, within the rent standard, of allowing consideration by local
authorities of the use of ‘intermediate rents’ for newly developed or newly acquired
properties, utilising new financial models. However, it is important that any such provision
is based on evidence of need and is additional to, and not instead of, increasing the
provision of affordable rents through social housing provision, including homes directly
provided by councils and by new housing co-operatives.

e) Reform the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system

CIH has supported Welsh Government to reach a financial settlement for the abolition of
the subsidy payable under the terms of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to HM
Treasury by Welsh councils. Moving to a new system that is self-financing offers
opportunities for local authorities to begin building significant numbers of new affordable
homes for the first time in a generation, as well as borrowing to invest in their stock where
it does not yet reach WHQS.

We welcome the proposals to establish a means through legislation to determine a buy-out
value for each authority. We recognise the need to secure the necessary UK legislation to

fully implement changes and support calls to expedite this process. It is in the interest of all
parties that we move to the new system as soon as possible. We endorse the continuation

6
Tudalen 6



of a co-production approach between Government and local authorities to implement
changes.

f) The power for local authorities to charge more than the standard rate of council
tax on homes empty for over a year

It is estimated that there are 23,000 residential properties in Wales that are either empty or
being used as second homes. These properties can have a significant negative social and
economic impact on communities. CIH Cymru supports initiatives that encourage owners
to make better use of their properties, and to target the wasted resource of empty homes.
This can be achieved by a mixture of incentives and sanctions, including raising revenue
by charging increased council tax, that would also directly benefit local communities and
help redress the economic loss and social consequences that arise from empty properties.
We therefore support the proposal to allow Local Authorities a discretionary power to levy
a higher rate of council tax on empty properties.

We would also support a similar levy on second homes. In Wales ‘holiday homes’ are by
definition usually in attractive rural or coastal areas, often where Welsh speakers comprise
a greater proportion of the population than average, and in certain areas is the majority
language. Properties often remain empty for much of the year and local households
become increasingly priced out of the market. This leads to sustainability ‘double whammy’
— population levels fall, threatening service provision, and the language base is further
eroded. The cumulative impact on community cohesion and a reduced economic multiplier
are obvious. Increasing charges on such properties might encourage owners to utilise the
properties differently and help alleviate the local economic loss.

We understand that there is some support for allowing a higher percentage than 150% of
standard tax to be charged, perhaps using a stair-casing approach for empty properties
(so that the amount increases over time) and think this should be considered by the
Committee in its scrutiny of the proposals

g) The provision of housing by Co-operative Housing Associations

CIH Cymru supports the development of co-operative housing in Wales. Our research’
published in 2013 showed there was considerable public appetite for this tenure and its
underlying principles. We consider that supporting co-operative housing will strengthen
tenure choice in Wales, help to raise standards and increase community involvement and
cohesion.

We therefore specifically endorse the proposals in the Bill to allow housing co-operatives
to grant assured tenancies, and that the tenancies will be strengthened further following
the implementation of the Renting Homes Bill, to introduce a secure contract based on the
current local authority secure tenancy which will strengthen tenant security, increase
equity and protect consumer rights.

7 http://www.walescooperative.org/index.php?cID=826&cType=document

Tudalen 7



h) Amendments to the Mobile Home (Wales) Act 2013

We support the proposals in the Bill to remove the subsection stating that a ‘repayment
order may not require the payment of any amount which the tribunal is satisfied... it would
be unreasonable for the owner or manager of the site to be required to pay’ as well as the
other technical and minor amendments listed.

2. Any potential barriers to the implementation of these provisions and
whether the Bill takes account of them

We are of the view that legislation alone cannot solve the problems of under supply, the
quality of homes and services, and fair and appropriate rights and responsibilities. The Bill
needs to be seen in the context of a range of interventions that Government and partners
can make to ‘join up’ a Welsh housing system to deliver good quality, warm and
sustainable homes for all.

There are a number of potential barriers to this ‘joined up’ approach, and we would
recommend:

e ensuring the provisions in the Bill ‘mesh’ consistently with other legislation, including
the forthcoming Planning Bill;

e ensuring the provision of adequate resources to implement all of the legislative
changes, particularly for local authorities in Wales who are facing difficult financial
challenges;

e ensuring the commitment of partners by continuing to promote and support a co-
production approach, of which legislation is only one part, albeit an important one;

e continued joint working to mitigate against the impact of welfare reform and rising
living costs for vulnerable households in Wales;

¢ closely monitoring the level of delivery of new homes, and the impact of interventions
on the housing market, including the new Help to Buy-Wales scheme, to ensure
supply is maximised.

3. Whether there are any unintended consequences arising from the Bill

We recognise the concerns by PRS representative bodies that legislation may penalise
good landlords and have little impact on bad ones. However we agree with the previous
Minister that it is possible to both improve stock and services and to increase supply of
private rented sector housing at the same time; ‘Good standards and growth in the sector

Tudalen 8



are not mutually exclusive; they go hand in hand”®. We believe that legislation has a key
role to play in delivering this.

4. The financial implications of the Bill (as set out in Part 2 of the
Explanatory Memorandum (the Regulatory Impact Assessment, which
estimates the costs and benefits of implementation of the Bill)

Any new legislation, particularly where there are expectations on partners, will have
additional costs. It is also true that some of the provisions of the Bill (e.g. in relation to
reform of the HRAS and supporting the development of co-operative housing) could lead
to securing additional resources. It is important to remember that implementation costs
should be seen in the context of potential savings brought about by new approaches and
legislation, including improved PRS standards and mapping, and homelessness
prevention.

In ensuring that the financial implications of legislation are minimised, we believe the
National Assembly, Welsh Government and partners need to keep under review:

¢ the costs of implementation to Government and local authorities;
¢ the impact of changes to homelessness services and advice agencies;
o the impact of regulation on the PRS and its effectiveness

5. The appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to
make subordinate legislation (as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the
Explanatory Memorandum, which contains a table summarising the
powers for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate legislation)

We are satisfied that the proposals in the Bill are within the powers of Welsh Ministers to
make subordinate legislation.

g Huw Lewis, Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage, NAW Record of Proceeding 20.06.2012

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-chamber-fourth-assembly-rop.htm?act=dis&id=235496&ds=7%2F2012#q1
[accessed 10.08.2012]

Tudalen 9



Eitem 3

Communities, Equality and Local Government
CELG(4)-01-14 Paper 2
Housing (Wales) Bill

Housing (Wales) Bill
WLGA Evidence to the

Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

J 2014 > x
danuary :@6*

WLGA «CLILC

Tudalen 10



Introduction

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities in
Wales. The three national park authorities and the three fire and rescue authorities,

are associate members.

2. It seeks to provide representation for local authorities within an emerging policy
framework that satisfies the key priorities of our members and delivers a broad range
of services that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they

SEerve.

3. The WLGA welcomes the Housing Bill and the opportunity it offers to improve housing
in Wales. The Bill addresses a number of key priorities in relation to housing that local
government shares and we look forward to working with Welsh Government to
implement the legislation and maximise it's positive impact. Local Government has had
the opportunity to work closely with Welsh Government officials on developing many
aspects of the legislation to and we have welcomed this approach to the development
of the draft Bill.

Part 1: Registration and Licencing Scheme for Private Landlords and Letting
and Managing Agents

4.  The proposal to introduce a compulsory registration and licencing scheme for all
private rented sector landlords and managing agents is welcomed by the WLGA.
The private rented sector plays an increasingly important role in the housing system
and is an important partner of local authorities in relation to their housing strategic
role. The proposed scheme will enable authorities to build on the positive relationships
many already have with local private landlords and support the improvement of

privately rented homes.

5. The private rented sector in Wales has grown rapidly over recent years with 14% of
homes in Wales being privately rented (2011 Census), almost as many as are rented

2 Tudalen 11



from social landlords. Research (1) suggests the private rented sector may reach 20%
of the housing market in the UK by 2020.

The sector is very diverse and is made up of a large number of sub sectors. At one
end of the spectrum it includes some high quality rented accommodation aimed at
high income mobile professionals while at the other end are poor standard properties
that provide accommodation for benefit dependent households. Compared with owner
occupied and social rented properties the private rented sector suffers from the
highest levels of disrepair. The sector also provides for some extremely vulnerable
people, particularly single people and couples who find it difficult to access social
housing. In some authority areas more than 60% of private sector tenants are in

receipt of local housing allowance.

It is currently not possible for local authorities to identify the private landlords
operating in their area or the properties that are privately rented and this limits their
ability to develop an effective partnership with the sector or take a strategic approach
to this part of the housing market. The proposed registration and licencing scheme
has the potential to provide information on the private rented sector for the first time
and will allow authorities to work in @ more strategic way to improve the housing

standards of privately rented homes and the reputation of the sector.

In our view the proposed scheme strikes a good balance between ensuring the
management of privately rented properties meets a minimum standard, and the need
to avoid burdensome regulation that might drive good landlords out of the sector. The
proposed cost to landlords is minimal with Welsh Government estimating costs to be
33p per week per property for a landlord with 2 properties (2). We also believe the
proposed administrative costs and training element of the scheme are proportionate
given the serious impact poor property management can have on the health, well-
being and welfare of tenants. It is also important to recognise that the scheme will
potentially offer significant benefits for private landlords as it will enable local
authorities to improve their communication with landlords and provide support,

information and advice.

Tudalen 12 3



10.

11.

12.

Research by the University of York (3) into the private rented sector highlights the
significant proportion of landlords that own one or two properties. The study indicates
that in England an increasing number of landlords own one or two properties with
73% of properties being owned by individuals or couples. 44% of these
individual/couple landlords own just one property and 27% own two properties. It is
likely that the private rented sector in Wales is not dissimilar to the sector in England
with many being ‘accidental’ or *hobby’ landlords.

In our view it is therefore essential that the registration and licencing scheme applies
to all landlords, including those who own a single property. If such landlords were
excluded a very high proportion of the private rented sector would remain outside the
scheme and unregistered. Anecdotal evidence from local authority private sector
housing teams suggests the worst housing conditions are often found in properties
owned by single property landlords, many of whom have limited understanding of
their legal duties. It is also important that all tenants benefit from the scheme,
particularly those who are most at risk of poor property management.

On it's own the scheme will not improve housing conditions in the private rented
sector, however, the register will provide an information base of landlords and
privately rented properties, and will improve the ability of local authorities to advise
landlords on their legal obligations. It will also improve the ability of authorities to take
enforcement action against the small number of landlords who refuse to take their
legal duties seriously.

We expect and welcome the likelihood that the scheme will bring an increased number
of poor quality properties to the attention of local authorities. While this will inevitably
increase service pressures at a time when local authorities are facing significant
challenges, improving standards in the private rented sector is a key aspect of local
authority community leadership and strategic housing roles and we welcome the
opportunity the registration scheme offers to work more closely with private landlords.

Tudalen 13



13.

14.

15.

16.

The Housing (Wales) Bill Part 2 recognises the important role the private rented sector
has to play in preventing and addressing homelessness and proposes a new local
authority power which will allow use of the private rented sector to discharge their
statutory homelessness duty. This is welcomed by local authorities and underlines the
importance of developing a strong strategic partnership with private sector landlords
and improving standards in the sector.

The proposed scheme has the potential to help local authorities improve housing
standards and perceptions of the sector. However this can only be achieved if the
registration scheme is consistently and effectively enforced and this will require
effective (and proportionate) penalties and sufficient resources. An evaluation of the
similar landlord registration scheme in Scotland (2011) (4) identified effective
enforcement as a significant issue. We therefore have some concerns in relation to the
effective enforcement of the scheme and the potential for unintended consequences

to arise from the proposed rent stopping orders.

The Bill proposes a number of civil and criminal penalties to incentivise registration.
A civil sanction of a ‘rent stopping’ order is proposed which would result in rent or
service charges not being payable by the tenant if a landlord and the property is not
licenced. We are concerned that this proposal may make a tenant vulnerable to
intimidation and retaliatory action/eviction from landlords who may not understand
their duty or who may choose not to comply with the law. The evaluation of the
Scottish scheme, that has a similar penalty, raises concerns about the risk to tenants
and identifies the difficulty of monitoring whether rent payments are being made or
withheld by the tenant or not.

We suggest that a preferable and more effective penalty is one currently used in
relation to HMO (Houses of Multiple Occupation) licencing and therefore one
understood by many private landlords already. This approach prevents un-licenced
landlord’s from serving a Section 21 Notice (a no fault eviction notice) as the
landlord registration number has to be provided to the court. In addition the local
authority can serve a rent repayment order (Housing Act 2004) when a landlord has

Tudalen 14 5



17.

18.

been convicted of failing to register. However, we understand there may be some
issues with this approach and the Welsh Government is further exploring whether
this approach could be used. The WLGA is also seeking advice to further clarify the
position, and if the legal issues can be addressed we believe this approach will be
better understood by landlords, more effective and will place a tenant at less risk.

The WLGA fully supports the creation of a comprehensive register of landlords and
agents. However this aim will only be achieved if resources are available to enforce
the scheme. An important element of this is ensuring that the courts award the full
cost of taking a landlord to court. We would welcome any work the Welsh Government
can undertake with the judiciary to underline the importance of full costs being
awarded to local authorities who take legal action against private landlords who fail to
register.

Case law (Hemming v Westminster) suggests it might not be possible to use the
landlord registration scheme fees to take enforcement action against non registered
landlords. We understand Welsh Government lawyers are considering whether the
resourcing arrangements for the Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) licencing
schemes can be applied to the enforcement of the proposed landlord registration
scheme. We welcome this and hope that it will help resolve the issue of resourcing

enforcement.

19. The Bill proposes that individual local authorities have a duty to maintain an up-to-date

19.

register of rented properties, private sector landlords, responsible people and agents.
We are satisfied that agreement in principle has been reached on a national approach
with a single local authority administering the scheme on behalf of all authorities in
Wales. We are confident that the licence fees will be sufficient to cover the cost of a
single authority administering the scheme on behalf of all 22 authorities.

Part 2: Homelessness Legislation
The WLGA strongly supports the proposal to focus homelessness legislation in Wales
on prevention and to widen the safety net beyond those in the priority need groups.

Tudalen 15



20.

21,

22,

23.

We recognise that prevention is a much more effective and appropriate approach and
local authorities across Wales are already providing housing options advice and
assistance to a growing number of people who are at risk of homelessness. This is
evidenced by the increasing number of households who are recorded by authorities as
‘eligible but not homeless’, and the reducing number of households who are statutorily

homeless.

We recognise that in the long term prevention is a much more effective use of
resources than crisis intervention. We welcome the recognition by Welsh Government
that additional resources will be required to implement the legislation and support
authorities to make the transition from the requirements of the current legislation to

the new approach which will be required under the new legislation.

The WLGA fully supports the principles which underpin the proposed homelessness
legislation and we consider it has the potential to significantly improve services for
people at risk of homelessness in Wales. However, we suggest there are a small
number of areas where some drafting in the Bill could be slightly amended to ensure
the intentions of the legislation are clear and to ensure unintended consequences are

avoided. These are discussed below.

Duty to carry out a Homelessness Review and formulate a Homelessness
Strategy
We appreciate that the duty to undertake a review and develop a strategy
Homelessness currently exists. However, there is the opportunity to recognise and
better join up with the broader strategic planning framework for local government in
the Housing Bill and place a duty on local authorities to integrate the review of need
and the strategic planning of homelessness services with the Single Integrated Plan.

We feel there would be important additional benefits to be gained from this approach
as it would lead to a more holistic and corporate approach to homelessness and
ensure the links are made with a wide range of other local authority strategic
responsibilities such as health and wellbeing, community safety, social care, housing

Tudalen 16 7



24,

supply and the private rented sector. We suggest that it would be more appropriate for
local authorities to have a duty to ensure that review of need and strategic planning for
homelessness is fully reflected in the Single Integrated Plan.

Duty to take reasonable steps to prevent homelessness for anyone
irrespective of local connection or intentionality

The WLGA supports the widening of the safety net to include households who do not
have priority need status, for example, single people or childless couples. However, we
have some concerns that the duty to take reasonable steps to prevent homelessness
for anyone, irrespective of local connection or intentionality could have unintended

consequences.

25. There is no similar ‘prevention’ duty in England and therefore local authorities bordering

26.

27.

England have concerns that English households at risk of homeless who have links with
Wales or live on the borders of Wales might wish to access prevention services.
Similarly the larger cities in Wales have concerns that the legislation will exacerbate the
current trend for some households who are at risk of homelessness to gravitate to
larger cities to access services. We suggest this risk could be addressed by the
‘reasonable steps’ duty including assistance to help someone to return to their

accommodation in an authority where they have a greater connection.

We also have some concerns about the possibility that an authority could have a
recurring duty to ‘take reasonable steps’ to prevent homelessness, irrespective of
whether an individual is persistently acting in a way that will result in a risk of
homelessness. This could include for example deliberate rent arrears or anti social
behaviour. Given that resources for homelessness prevention are finite we consider it is
appropriate for the legislation to avoid creating a recurring local authority duty if an
individual is not taking reasonable steps to avoid the risk of homelessness.

Duty to assess
Local authorities recognise the value of homelessness prevention and are gradually

increasing prevention services across Wales to the extent that resources currently

Tudalen 17



28.

29.

30.

31.

allow. However the constraints of the current homelessness legislation inevitably result
in homelessness services being more focused on assessing eligibility for statutory

homeless services and less on preventing homelessness.

Authorities are preparing to refocusing their services on homelessness prevention and
‘problem solving” when someone first approaches the authority. We anticipate the new
legislation will enable authorities to concentrate their resources on prevention activities
and only be required to assess eligibility for statutory homelessness services when all

efforts to prevent homelessness have failed.

However the legislation as currently drafted continues to place a duty on authorities to
assess eligibility for statutory homelessness services when the applicant first
approaches the authority. (Para 48) and to inform the applicant of the decision about
eligibility (Para 49). The WLGA has been assured by Welsh Government that it is not
intended that local authorities will be required to undertake the equivalent of a
statutory homeless application when they first have contact with an applicant and
when circumstances. We welcome this clarification as the bill as drafted would have
very significant resource implications. We hope the Government will consider
addressing what appears to be a drafting error during stage 2.

Discharge into the private rented sector

We welcome the proposal to give local authorities the power to use private rented
housing to discharge their homelessness duty where this is appropriate. The limited
supply of social housing and limited number of vacancies, particularly of smaller
homes, makes it increasingly difficult to provide access to social rented homes within a
reasonable period of time for many statutory homeless households.

There are concerns that the current statutory right of homeless households to social
housing can also have the unintended consequence of making homelessness one of
the few routes into social housing. This results in households on the housing register
waiting a very long time for a property, or sometimes never reaching the top of the
list, because homeless households have greater priority. The opportunity to use the

Tudalen 18 9



32.

33.

34.

35.

10

private rented sector will help to break the link between homelessness and social
housing and also open up a much wider range of housing options for homeless
households.

It is widely recognised that access to good quality accommodation in the private
rented sector is the most effective way of preventing homelessness and can enable a
household to make a planned move, rather than experience the crisis of
homelessness. Authorities are therefore developing private sector access schemes in
order to expand the number of suitable private sector rented properties available to
people at risk of homelessness.

Intentional Homelessness

The WLGA welcomes the proposal to allow authorities the option of applying the
intentionality ‘test’ and allow authorities the discretion to use it for some or all of the
‘priority need’ groups. In our view this strikes the right balance between rights and
responsibilities and will ensure local authorities are able to focus their resources on

households who are unavoidably homeless.

Former prisoners

We welcome the proposed change to the priority need status of former prisoners and
the move away from automatic priority need status to priority status being based on
vulnerability due to their detention. Currently all former prisoners have automatic
priority if they are homeless on release and as a result they currently constitute

approximately 15% of homelessness acceptances in Wales.

The findings of a study of homelessness services for former prisoners undertaken for
the WLGA and funded by Welsh Government (2008) (5) suggested that the high levels
of homelessness amongst this group were to some extent an unintended consequence
of the automatic priority need status of former prisoners. This has contributed to the
prison service providing minimal housing assistance to prisoners prior to their release
and has effectively undermined efforts to ensure prisoners are not homeless on

release.

Tudalen 19



36.

37.

38.

39.

Unfortunately the lack of suitably sized social rented homes has meant that many
former prisoners have to be accommodated in temporary accommodation while they
wait for permanent housing. Such accommodation is not conducive to resettlement,
and anecdotal evidence from local authorities suggests that a relatively high
proportion of former prisoners either abandon their accommodation, return to prison
or become homeless again. Former prisoners do not have automatic priority need
status in England and there is no conclusive evidence of higher levels of resettlement

or lower levels of re-offending in Wales compared with England.

We believe the proposed change to the priority need status of former prisoners will
allow local authorities to continue to award priority need status where an individual is
homelessness on release because of their detention or because they are vulnerable
There is evidence of relatively high levels of mental ill health, substance misuse and
other vulnerabilities amongst the prison population and it is therefore likely that a
relatively high proportion of former prisoners will have priority need status because
of their vulnerability.

We are hopeful that the focus of the proposed legislation on early homelessness
prevention will ensure that councils can provide assistance in the 56 days prior to the
release of a prisoner who doesn’t have a home. If local authorities have this period
of time to assist a prisoner they will in many cases be able to ensure accommodation
is available with family or friends, in rented accommodation or supported housing. It
will be very important that the prison authorities co-operate and provide local
authorities with 56 days notice of release. Co-operation from Local Health Boards,
Housing Associations and other agencies will also be extremely important.

Duty to provide accommodation for intentionally homeless families with
children

We support the principle of ensuring that no children are homeless. However we have
some concerns about the potential unintended consequences of the proposed duty on

Authorities from 2019 to provide accommodation for intentionally homeless

Tudalen 20 11



40.

41.

42.

43.

12

households with children. Authorities currently can advise families of the possibility of
an ‘intentionally homeless’ decision in an effort to persuade families to consider the
implications of negative behaviour where homelessness is avoidable. This includes anti
social behaviour, giving up a tenancy with no reason or wilfully failing to pay rent. We
have concerns that the proposed new duty could have the unintended consequence of

leading to an increase in homeless families with children.

We recognise the value of troubled families being provided with an integrated package
of support in order to avoid future homelessness, however we have concerns about the
resource implications of this proposal. We therefore hope there will be an opportunity to
work closely with the Welsh Government in the period preceding 2019 to consider how

these services can be resourced.

Duty on Registered Social Landlords (RSL)

Registered Social Landlords (RSL's) have a crucial role to play in preventing and
addressing homelessness and are an important strategic partner of local authorities.
Their role is particularly important in the 11 local authority areas where housing stock
has been transferred to a Housing Association. We are pleased that co-operation
between authorities and RSL’s is very good in many parts of Wales; however,
unfortunately this is not the case everywhere.

Over past decades considerable amounts of public money have been invested in RSL's
in Wales and this has enabled them to build up significant assets in terms of housing
stock and land. Many RSL's have used this asset base to contribute to the wellbeing of
the communities they work in and to advance social objectives. Unfortunately RSL’s
are facing an increasingly challenging environment with reduced levels of social
housing grant and the adverse impact of welfare reform. Local authorities therefore
have concerns that co-operation from RSL'’s in the future will be by no means certain.

The WLGA continues to work with Community Housing Cymru (CHC), the
representative body for RSL's, to promote closer partnership working between the two
sectors. However not all RSL’s fully recognise the importance of co-operation and

Tudalen 21



therefore we support the Welsh Government proposal to strengthen the legal duty on
RSL’s to co-operate with authorities. We are concerned however the proposed new
duty to co-operate, “unless it is incompatible with (the RSL’s) duties” or “will have an
adverse effect on its functions” does not markedly strengthen the duty. We therefore
welcome the efforts of the Welsh Government to strengthen the duty further. The
WLGA is also be looking at ways in which this duty can be strengthened and co-
operation ensured through the Bill.

Resource Implications of the Homelessness Legislation

44. The WLGA welcomes the proposed homelessness legislation and the clear focus it
places on early homelessness prevention. The approach promoted will enable local
authorities to move to a preventative, ‘problem solving” approach and focus resources

on helping people to avoid the crisis of homelessness.

45. We are hopeful that in the longer term this focus on prevention will reduce
homelessness and help authorities to make more effective use of resources. However
it was clear from an impact assessment by the WLGA and the Welsh Government that
the legislation will initially cost more as local authorities will have a duty to provide
prevention services for anyone who is threatened with homelessness within the next

56 days, which is a new burden.

46. We welcome the additional resources being made available in 2014-15 (£4.9m) and in
2015-16 (£3.2m) to assist with the additional cost of implementing the legislation. In
addition we are aware that the Welsh Government is undertaking a review of current
Section 180 funded homelessness projects to ensure they are focused on
homelessness prevention and we understand there is a possibility that some additional
resources may be available to local authorities through this funding stream in future

years to help them prepare for and implement the legislation.
47. The WLGA welcomes the recognition that local authority resources are finite, and the

proposed duty to ‘take reasonable steps’ being conditional and subject to ‘the need to
make best use of the authority’s resources.’

Tudalen 22 13



Part 3: Gypsies and Travellers

48. The WLGA recognises the importance of reviewing and planning to meet the

49.

accommodation needs of Gypsy and Travellers. Current accommodation needs
assessments show a significant undersupply of permanent and transient sites for
Gypsy Travellers and we look forward to working with local authorities and Welsh
Government officials to help authorities address this.

Gypsy and Traveller communities in Wales have faced (and continue to face) deep-
rooted discrimination over many generations. Sadly this makes it extremely difficult
and time consuming to gain planning consent of sites due to local resistance to
specific proposals. The WLGA is committed to working with local authorities and Welsh
Government to provide the leadership necessary to take this very challenging work

forward.

50. There are currently eighteen permanent sites provided by thirteen authorities and no

51.

52.

14

transient sites in Wales; however 14 local authorities have indicated a commitment to
developing new sites and authorities in some regions, such as North Wales, are

working together to take a strategic approach to meeting need across the region. We
welcome the support the Welsh Government is offering in terms of grants for existing

and new sites.

Part 4: Wales Housing Quality Standard and Standards

We recognise the value of consistent standards in the social housing sector in Wales
and understand this aspect of the Bill is proposed to better align local authority and
housing association sectors. We recognise the value of having consistent standards of
accommodation, rent policy and approach to setting service charges and the increased
transparency this will provide for tenants.

In the past local authorities have traditionally pooled their service charges and
are now at varying stages in the challenging task of disaggregating charges. This is
a time consuming process and it will be important that authorities are given sufficient

time to undertake this work.

Tudalen 23



53. We understand that all 11 Authorities with stock have either reached WHQS or have
business plans in place to achieve the standard by 2020. The complex and
bureaucratic Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system (HRAs) has in the past made it
difficult for authorities to plan with certainty but we are hopeful that authorities will be
exiting from the HRAs in April 2015 and will then be in a position to plan strategically
for the first time. Unfortunately the settlement reached with the UK Treasury will
impose a borrowing cap on authorities, but it is not yet clear how this will impact on
their ability to reach WHQS by 2020 (for those who have not yet achieved it). It will be
important that this is taken into account in relation to the 2020 target.

Part 5: Housing Finance

54. We welcome the settlement reached between the Welsh Government and the UK
Treasury and the prospect that local authorities with housing stock will become self-
financing from April 2015. The settlement will ensure that each of the eleven
authorities will be better off and will be able to accelerate their work to improve
homes and in some cases build new affordable homes. We understand this part of the
Bill incorporates the appropriate legislative changes required to allow the current HRAs
system to be dismantled. We look forward to the opportunity for a new era of council
house building in Wales from April 2015.

Part 6: Allowing Fully Mutual Housing Associations to grant assured
tenancies
55. The WLGA recognises the role that fully mutual co-operative housing can play in
extending the range of housing options in the Welsh housing market. We welcome
this part of the Bill that will remove some of current barriers to the development of co-
operative housing and allow fully mutual co-operatives to grant assured and short-hold
assured tenancies. We are hopeful that this will improve the ability of fully mutual co-

operatives to access loan finance.

Tudalen 24 15



56.

57.

58.

Part 7: Council Tax for Empty Dwellings

The WLGA welcomes the proposal to provide local authorities with the discretionary
power to increase council tax on “dwellings that have been both unoccupied and
substantially unfurnished for a continuous period of at least one year”. It is difficult to
accurately calculate the number of long-term empty properties, but it is estimated to
be between 18,000 — 23,000 long-term empty homes in Wales.

There is a significant under supply of homes across Wales and every local authority is
therefore working hard to bring as many empty homes back into use as possible. The
£20million Welsh Government ‘Houses into Homes’ recyclable loan scheme is
extremely helpful in this work and this proposed new power to charge additional
council tax will provide an additional ‘tool’ that will discourage owners from leaving

houses empty without good reason.

It is important that local authorities have the power to increase council tax up to a
level that will act as a disincentive to owners who might leave property empty. The
WLGA proposed a charge of up to 200% of council tax to be raised after a property is
empty for 12 months (rather than 150%) and this figure was arrived at from a survey
of authorities on the appropriate maximum level of increase. We hope that the level
this power will provide by which council tax can be increased will be given further
consideration in order that local authorities can use this power in a way that will be

most effective.

59. The primary purpose of the discretionary power is to incentivise owners not to leave

60.

16

homes empty, but it is possible that it will also generate a small amount of additional
income which authorities can use to further enhance their work to bring empty homes
back into use or to provide more affordable homes.

We ask that consideration will also be given to providing authorities with discretionary
powers to increase council tax on second homes up to the same level as empty
homes. A WLGA survey in 2011 estimated there are over 23,000 second homes in
Wales that equates to 1.4% of all homes. Second homes tend to be concentrated in

Tudalen 25



rural areas where second homes make up a much higher proportion. In Gwynedd for
example 8.7% of homes are second homes. This clearly has a negative impact on the
sustainability of many rural communities and often pushes house prices up beyond the
reach of local people.

61. It has been estimated that a council tax charge of up to 200% could generate an
additional income of over £22m (WLGA 2012) which could be used to offset the
negative impacts of second homes and contribute to increasing the supply of

affordable homes and other key community services such as crucial bus services.

References
1. Pattison, B. et al (2010) Tenure trends in the UK Housing System
British Social Housing Foundation
2. Welsh Government (2013) Housing (Wales) Bill Regulatory impact assessment
Welsh Government
3. Rugg, J. Rhodes (2008) The private rented sector: it's contribution and potential
University of York
4. DTZ (2011) Evaluation of the impact and operation of landlord registration in
Scotland. Scottish Government
5. Humphreys, C. and Stirling, T. (2008) - Necessary but not sufficient: housing and
the reduction of re-offending. WLGA
. WLGA (2011) Survey undertaken by WLGA to estimate the impact of charging
Additional council tax on empty and second homes WLGA

(o))

Tudalen 26 17



18

Tudalen 27



Eitem 5

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen 28



Y Pwyligor Cﬁlnefau, Cydradcgjeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau

CELG(4)-01- ue m

John Griffiths AC /AM ’%

Y Gweinidog Diwylliant a Chwaraeon
Minister for Culture and Sport

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref SF/JG/3477/13

Christine Chapman AC/AM
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cymunedau,
Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol

rd
(= Rhagfyr 2013

[y ‘.-«,‘,..\,L'\"“‘X’(_ ('...-*C'\.--u_-fr.\-C"‘:i' /

CYNIGION AR GYFER CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT LLYWODRAETH CYMRU, 2014-15

Diolch am eich llythyr, dyddiedig 29 Hydref, yn dilyn eich cyfarfod Pwyllgor ar 24 Hydref lle
roeddwn yn ateb cwestiynau ar y cynigion ar gyfer y gyllideb ddrafft mewn perthynas a
Diwylliant a Chwaraeon.

Am y tro, yr hyn a wnaf yw ymateb i'r pwyntiau penodol yr ydych wedi gofyn am fwy o
wybodaeth yn eu cylch. Byddaf yn hapus i roi gwybodaeth reolaidd ichi yn nes ymlaen ary
meysydd hynny yr ydych wedi gofyn am gael gwybodaeth amdanynt. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys
yr Adroddiad Blynyddol nesaf ar y Rhaglen Lywodraethu. Caiff hwn ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mai.

Fe ddefnyddiaf rifau'r adrannau yr ydych chi wedi'u defnyddio yn eich llythyr.
3. Amgueddfeydd, Archifau a Llyfrgelloedd

Fel y dywedais yn y Pwyllgor, nid ydym yn gwybod ar hyn o bryd beth yw hyd a lled toriadau
o fewn awdurdodau lleol o ran eu heffaith ar wasanaethau, gan fod yr awdurdodau yn dal i
weithio drwy oblygiadau setliad y gyllideb. Rwy'n cadw mewn cysylitiad agos a
Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (CLILC) yn hyn o beth, a hefyd &'r Gweinidog
Llywodraeth Leol a Busnes y Llywodraeth. Ac mae fy swyddogion yn parhau i fod mewn
cysyllitiad agos & CLILC a gwasanaethau llywodraeth leol.

O ran y berthynas rhwng lefel y cyllid a ddarperir | weithredu Strategaeth Llyfrgelloedd yn
Ysbrydoli 2012-16 a Strategaeth Amgueddfeydd Cymru 2010-2015, a'r deilliannau penaodol
y maent wedi'u cyflawni hyd yn hyn, mae CyMAL yn helpu. Mae'n rhoi grant i'r sector
amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd i gyflawni eu strategaethau drwy brosiectau.
Prosiectau yw'r rhain sy'n cyflawni'r union ddeilliannau sydd wedi'u hamlinellu yn y
cynlluniau blynyddol y cytunwyd arnynt fel rhan o strategaethau cenedlaethol. Mae'r

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Ltinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence, John, Griffiths@wales.gsi,gov. uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi'i ailqy&aaquz Printed on 100% recycled paper



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

deilliannau sy'n ymwneud a chynyddu'r nifer sy'n ymddiddori a gwella mynediad i adnoddau
yn ganolog i strategaethau amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd. Dyma rai ohonynt:

« Cynyddu'r nifer sy’'n ymddiddori drwy raglen i ddatblygu cynulleidfaoedd cenedlaethol er
mwyn hyrwyddo gwasanaethau,
* Hwyluso mynediad i'r cyhoedd i wasanaethau ar-lein drwy fentrau caffael a digideiddio
cenedlaethol cost-effeithiol, papurau newydd, hanes teuluol a chatalogau/casgliadau;
¢ Cyfoethogi bywydau pobl drwy weithgareddau penodol:
- Cynyddu nifer y plant a'r bobl ifanc o ardaloedd difreintiedig sy'n ymddiddori mewn
amgueddfeydd, drwy Kids in Museums a gwaith Comisiynydd Plant Cymru
- Cynllun trafnidiaeth i'w gwneud yn bosibl i ysgolion ymweld 8 Gwasanaethau
Archifau lleol;
« Cynyddu'’r defnydd cymunedol a wneir o gyfleusterau llyfrgelloedd drwy raglen
foderneiddio Llyfrgelloedd Dysgu Cymunedol (mae 6 prosiect llyfrgell wedi cael grantiau
yng Nghymru yn 2013-14).

Nod y rhaglen hon yw datblygu'r arfer o gydweithredu yn lleol, yn rhanbarthol, ac yn
genedlaethol, i arbed arian, newid trefniadaeth sefydliadau, a darparu gwasanaethau mewn
ffordd well sy'n fwy cynaliadwy. Er enghraifft, mae gwaith ar y gweill i gaffael system i reoli
llyfrgelloedd Cymru. Mae'r dystiolaeth yn dangos bod modd arbed tua 30% (cyfalaf a
refeniw) drwy gyd-gaffael system newydd yn hytrach na bod pob awdurdod yn caffael eu
systemau eu hunain. Bydd hefyd yn arwain at ddarparu gwasanaethau ar-lein sy'n fwy cost-
effeithiol, fel e-lyfrau ac e-gylchgronau. Yn nes ymlaen y mis hwn, byddaf yn lansio e-
gylchgrawn newydd ar gyfer 20 o lyfrgelloedd cyhoeddus Cymru. Mae awdurdodau lleol a
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi bod yn cydweithio i drefnu hyn. Mae fy swyddogion yn parhau i
weithio i sicrhau y bydd pawb sy'n defnyddio llyfrgelloedd cyhoeddus yn gallu defnyddio'r
gwasanaeth hwn yn y dyfodol agos. Mae ein cymorth grant ar gyfer buddsoddi mewn
gwasanaethau llyfrgelloedd lleol yn dod a manteision y gallwn eu mesur. Er enghraifft, drwy
gydleoli llyfrgell gyhoeddus gyda gwasanaeth gwybodaeth y cyngor, caffi menter
gymdeithasol a chapel ym Margoed, sicrhawyd cynnydd aruthrol yn yr ymwelwyr, gyda
164,000 o bobl yn croesi'r trothwy yn ystod y fiwyddyn gyntaf, gwelliant o 134% o gymharu
a'r fwyddyn flaenorol.

4. Yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol

Rwy'n ymwybodol iawn o'r cyfraniad sylweddol y mae sefydliadau llai yn ei wneud i
amgylchedd hanesyddol Cymru. Roedd hwn yn un o'r ffactorau a gyfrannodd at fy
mhenderfyniad i gyfyngu ar y gostyngiadau i'r gyllideb yn y maes hwn. Byddaf yn parhau i
gadw llygad ar y mater.

5. Y Cyfryngau a Chyhoeddi

Fel Llywodraeth, mae'r diffyg yng nghyfryngau Cymru yn parhau i fod yn destun pryder
mawr inni. Wrth gwrs, nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru yn uniongyrchol gyfrifol am ddarlledu nac
am y diwydiant papurau newydd yng Nghymru. Fodd bynnag, mae gennym bryderon
ynghylch y sefylifa sy'n datblygu am ei bod yn cael cymaint o effaith ar ein gwaith ac ar
gymunedau lleol ledled Cymru.

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi mynegi ei phryderon yn gyson i Lywodraeth y DU am nifer o
faterion mewn perthynas a darlledu ar gyfer y cyhoedd. Mae wedi lobio'r Adran Diwylliant, y
Cyfryngau a Chwaraeon cyn cyhoeddiad Llywodraeth y DU am y Cylch Gwario ym Mehefin
2013 yn pwyso arni i barhau i roi cyllid i S4C. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i ddadlau
dros gynnal gwasanaethau llawn yn Gymraeg ac yn Saesneg, ar lefel genedlaethol a lleol.

Tudalen 73



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

Fel y mae tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig Llywodraeth Cymru i Gomisiwn Silk yn ei adlewyrchu,
rydym o'r farn ei bod yn hanfodol gwella system atebolrwydd sefydliadau darlledu’r DU i'r
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol ac i wylwyr a gwrandawyr Cymru. Y ffordd orau o wneud hyn yw
cryfhau sefyllfa Gweinidogion Cymru o ran penodi staff y cyrff sy'n rheoleiddio darlledu yng
Nghymru. Rydym yn cynnig y dylai Gweinidogion Cymru gymeradwyo'r sawl a benodir yn
Aelod Cymru Ymddiriedolaeth y BBC ac yn Gadeirydd ac Aelodau Awdurdod S4C.
Dadleuwyd hefyd y dylai Bwrdd Ofcom gynnwys un aelod sydd a'r cyfrifoldeb penodol dros
gynrychioli barn dinasyddion Cymru, ac y dylai Gweinidogion Cymru gymeradwyo'r aelod
hwn hefyd.

Serch hynny, mae angen inni fod yn realistig a chydnabod bod y ffactorau sy'n gyrru
newidiadau yn y sector cyfryngau masnachol yn rhai grymus, eu bod nhw'n strwythurol ac
yn dechnolegol, ac nad yw'r math o fuddsoddiad ariannol y gall Llywodraeth Cymru ei
fforddio yn mynd i fod yn ddigonol 'w goresgyn. Dim ond mewn meysydd arbenigol, fel a
adlewyrchir yn y Papur Tystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor, y gall ein buddsoddiad ariannol ni wneud
gwahaniaeth. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru, drwy'r Cyngor Llyfrau, yn parhau i roi cyllid ar gyfer
gwasanaeth newyddion ar-lein dyddiol yn y Gymraeg, sef Golwg360 (£200,000), yn ogystal
a chyhoeddiadau newyddion a materion cyfoes Cymraeg. Mae'n cyllido cylchgrawn
newyddion wythnosol Golwg (£73,000), y cylchgrawn materion cyfoes misol Barn (£80,000)
ac erthyglau penodol ym mhapur newydd wythnosol Y Cymro (£18,000). Er y bydd cyllideb
y Cyngor Llyfrau ar gyfer y cylchgronau hyn yn cael ei diogelu i raddau helaeth, mae'r
Cyngor yn ymwybodol eu bod i gyd dan bwysau oherwydd ffactorau hysbysebu a nawdd yn
yr hinsawdd economaidd sydd ohoni.

Ar 11 Hydref, cyhoeddodd Cyngor Llyfrau Cymru fod Golwg Newydd wedi ennill y tendr i
ddarparu gwasanaeth newyddion ar-lein yn Gymraeg am dair blynedd arall. Mae Golwg360
wedi datblygu’n adnodd hanfodol i siaradwyr Cymraeg, ac mae tua 8,000 yn ymweld a'r
wefan bob dydd. Bydd y cyhoeddiad hwn yn golygu bod modd i'r cwmni adeiladu ar yr hyn y
mae wedi'i gyflawni hyd yma a pharhau i gyflawni'r rél bwysig o ddarparu gwasanaeth
newyddion Cymraeg ar-lein — cyfraniad gwerthfawr i gyflawni Strategaeth y Gymraeg
Llywodraeth Cymru,

Mae cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru i'r Cyngor Llyfrau hefyd yn cyfrannu at gylchgronau Saesneg.
Mae'r cylchgrawn materion cyfoes chwarterol, Planet, yn derbyn £73,000, ac mae atodiad
llyfrau sy’n cael ei gyhoeddi gyda chylchgrawn The Welsh Agenda yn cael grant o £8,000.
Mae dau gylchgrawn llenyddol arall hefyd yn cael cymorth ariannol, sef New Welsh Review
a Poetry Wales.

Gwnaed y gostyngiadau yng nghyllideb Cyngor Llyfrau Cymru ar sail asesiadau o effaith a
gyflwynwyd gan y Cyngor. Byddwn yn cydweithio'n agos a'r Cyngor i sicrhau bod y
gwasanaethau pwysicaf yn cael eu diogelu gymaint & phosibl.

Rwy’n ymwybodol bod pethau wedi mynd yn reit anodd ar orsafoedd radio cymunedol sydd
wedi elwa ar gyllid y Gronfa Radio Cymunedol. Er bod y Gronfa Radio Cymunedol wedi bod
yn hwb sylweddol i'r sector hwn yn amlwg, mae'n werth nodi bod wyth o'r naw gorsaf radio
gymunedol sy'n derbyn arian o'r Gronfa yn ystod y fiwyddyn ariannol hon yn bod cyn i'r
Gronfa gael ei sefydlu. Fel yr esboniais i't Pwyllgor, roedd y Gronfa i fod i ddod i ben
ddiwedd blwyddyn ariannol 2012-13. Pan wnaed y penderfyniad i ymestyn cyfnod y Gronfa
am fiwyddyn arall, cafodd y gorsafoedd wybod gan Lywodraeth Cymru mai am un fiwyddyn
yn unig y byddai hyn, er mwyn rhoi cyfle iddynt ddod o hyd i fiynonellau cyllid eraill neu
baratoi i fod yn hunangynhaliol ar 61 Mawrth 2014. Bydd fy swyddogion yn parhau i
gydgysylitu'n agos a'r gorsafoedd er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn gwbl ymwybodol o'r
ffynonellau cyllid eraill sy'n bod o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru a'’r tu allan iddi.

Tudalen 74



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

6. Chwaraeon ac ymarfer corff

Fel rydych yn ei nodi yn eich llythyr, un o'n prif amcanion yw ei gwneud yn haws i fwy o bobl
gymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon a chynyddu lefelau ymarfer corff er mwyn gwella iechyd y
genedl. Bydd Chwaraeon Cymru yn cydweithio @'m swyddogion dros y misoedd nesaf i
ofalu bod y cyllid sydd ar gael yn cael ei ddefnyddio yn y ffordd fwyaf effeithiol, fel y gallwn
symud yr agenda yn ei blaen. Drwy waith gwerthuso Chwaraeon Cymru ei hun, byddwn yn
gallu rhoi data hanesyddol a data diweddar ichi ar y niferoedd sy’'n gwneud chwaraeon ac
ymarfer corff. Byddaf yn hapus i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ichi ar y mater hwn ac ary
deilliannau penodol a welwyd yn sgil camau a gymerwyd gan y Llywodraeth gyfan i godi
lefelau ymarfer corff. Gwnaf hyn yn dilyn adroddiad 2014 o'r cynnydd a wnaed mewn
perthynas a'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu.

Fel y nodais yn fy ymateb ar Amgueddfeydd a Llyfrgelloedd, nid ydym eto’'n gwybod beth yw
hyd a lled effaith y toriadau yng nghyllid awdurdodau lleol o ran gwasanaethau hamdden a
chwaraeon lleol, gan fod yr awdurdodau'n dal i weithio drwy oblygiadau setliad y gyllideb.
Rwy’'n cadw mewn cysylltiad agos & CLILC ar y materion hyn. Mae Chwaraeon Cymru
hefyd yn cydweithio ag awdurdodau lleol i ddatblygu modelau gweithredu newydd sy’'n
lleihau costau swyddfa ac yn cynnal y gwasanaeth i'r cyhoedd ar yr un pryd. Gwneir hyn i
raddau drwy’r cynllun a gynigiwyd i drefnu cymorth fesul ardal. Mae fy swyddogion yn
parhau i fod mewn cysylltiad agos @ CLILC a gwasanaethau llywodraeth leol.

Mae'n bleser gen i nodi ein bod wedi llwyddo i ddatblygu cynllun benthyca cyfalaf o £5m i
ariannu cynllun peilot a fydd yn cynnig benthyciadau di-log i awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer
prosiectau chwaraeon a hamdden. Yn ystod y misoedd i ddod, bydd swyddogion yn
cydweithio'n agos ag awdurdodau lleol a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i ddatblygu
meini prawf y cynllun.

Rwy'n edrych ymlaen at weld eich casgliadau a fydd yn deillio o'r ymchwiliad i'r niferoedd
sy'n cymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon yng Nghymru,

7. Darpariaeth ar gyfer y Bil Teithio Llesol (Cymru)

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn iawn i nodi bod cerdded a beicio yn weithgareddau sy'n cefnogi
amcanion ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru ac mae yna ddyraniadau sy'n hybu cerdded a beicio
ac ar gyfer darparu seilwaith cerdded a beicio mewn sawl portffolio.

Mae pwysigrwydd gwaith cydlynus effeithiol yn cael ei gydnabod a bu Gweinidog yr
Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth a minnau yn cydweithio'n agos wrth i'r Ddeddf
Teithio Llesol (Cymru) fynd drwy'r Cynulliad.

Rwy’n gweithio gyda Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth ar y cyllidebau
yn ei phortffolio ac sy'n darparu ar gyfer datblygiad y Canllawiau Cynllunio a fydd yn helpu i
ddatblygu mapiau'r Liwybrau Presennol a'r Liwybrau Integredig. Yn unol a'r symiau a
nodwyd yn yr asesiad o effaith y Bil, mae £0.3m wedi'i ddyrannu y flwyddyn nesaf ar gyfer y
gweithgareddau hyn.

Wirth i'r Bil fynd drwodd, fe'i gwnes yn glir bob amser y bydd y gwariant ar seilwaith yn dod
o'r cyllid presennol, ond bellach byddai'n llawer gwell sianelu'r cyllid hwnnw i greu liwybrau
a fyddai'n gwneud gwahaniaeth go iawn gan roi dewis i bobl o ran dull teithio.

Rwyf hefyd yn cydweithio @ Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth ynghylch
y cyllidebau cyfalaf o fewn ei phortffolio sy'n darparu ar gyfer gwariant ar y seilwaith teithio
llesol a gaiff ei greu mewn ymateb i'r Bil.

Tudalen 75



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

Ar hyn o bryd, mae'r Gweinidog Trafnidiaeth yn rhoi cyllid i awdurdodau lleol i ddarparu
seilwaith cerdded a beicio drwy ddwy brif raglen grant. Yn y dyfodol, bydd angen i
awdurdodau lleol ddarparu’r llwybrau hyn | safon benodol sy'n unol a'r canllawiau cynllunio,
a chanolbwyntio ar gysyllitedd a hyrwyddo'r defnydd o Iwybrau.

Bydd buddsoddiad gan Weinidogion eraill hefyd yn helpu i weithredu'r Ddeddf Teithio
Llesol. Mae'r Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, er enghraifft, yn cyllido
amrywiaeth o raglenni sy'n annog pobl i gerdded a beicio fel rhan o ymgyrch hybu iechyd.

Mae'r Cynllun Gweithredu Teithio Llesol, a gaiff ei gyhoeddi ar gyfer ymgynghoriad yn fuan,
yn gynllun sy’'n cael ei hybu gan y Llywodraeth gyfan, ac mae'n cynnwys camau ar gyfer
nifer o bortffolios Gweinidogol.

Yr unig adnoddau sydd eu hangen i ddatblygu'r Cynllun Gweithredu yw costau staff a
chostau man iawn | gynnal digwyddiadau ymgynghori.

8. Gwario i arbed arian yn y pen draw

Yr enghraifft amlycaf o wario er mwyn arbed arian yn y pen draw yn fy mhortffolio i yw
gwario i gynyddu ffitrwydd corfforol pobl. Mae yna dystiolaeth glir i'r cysylitiad rhwng
ffitrwydd corfforol pobl a'u hiechyd a hyd eu bywyd. Roedd hon yn ffactor bwysig imi pan
benderfynais gyfyngu ar y gostyngiadau yng nghyllideb Chwaraeon Cymru. Wrth gwrs, mae
angen inni barhau | wario mewn ffordd fwy effeithiol yn y maes, a gwerthuso i ba raddau
mae arferion ymarfer corff ymhlith pobl ifanc yn parhau’n arferion oes, er mwyn asesu p'un
a yw gwariant yn y maes hwn wir yn arbed arian yn y pen draw drwy leihau gwariant ym
maes iechyd yn nes ymlaen. Mae annog pobl | fyw bywydau iachach yn hirach yn ganolog |
bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru.

Rwyf hefyd am dynnu sylw at elfennau eraill lle gellid gwario i arbed arian yn y pen draw:

* Mae'r rhan fwyaf o feysydd fy mhortfolio (ee chwaraeon, y celfyddydau, llyfrgelloedd,
treftadaeth a mynediad i'r amgylchedd hanesyddol, mwynhau cefn gwlad) yn cyfrannu at
iechyd a lles meddyliol. Mae costau salwch meddwl i economi Cymru yn sylweddol.
Mae'r “Canllaw Maes Anghyflawn Cyntaf i Les mewn Llyfrgelloedd”, a gyhoeddwyd ar 11
lonawr 2013, yn tynnu sylw at gyfraniad llyfrgelloedd i iechyd a lles pobl ledled Cymru.
Mewn llenyddiaeth ar effeithiau diwylliant, cydnabyddir yr ymchwil sy'n sén amy
manteision iechyd a ddaw yn sgil dilyn gweithgareddau creadigol a diwylliannol drwy
weithdai a therapi celf dan arweiniad artistiaid.

e Mae adroddiad yr Athro Dai Smith ar y Celfyddydau mewn Addysg yn sén amy
dystiolaeth ryngwladol i'r ffaith bod y celfyddydau yn gallu helpu i godi lefelau
cyrhaeddiad addysgol, yn enwedig ymhlith plant o gefndiroedd cymdeithasol-
economaidd is. Gall amgueddfeydd a sefydliadau treftadaeth wneud yr un cyfraniad.
Mae helpu i godi lefelau cyrhaeddiad addysgol pobl yn debygol o gynyddu eu cyfleoedd
bywyd, ac felly yn gallu arbed arian cyhoeddus yn y pen draw. Dyna un o'r rhesymau
pam rwy'n gweithio i gynyddu cyfraniad y celfyddydau a threftadaeth i'r ymgyrch i godi
lefelau cyrhaeddiad addysgol, gan gydweithio a'r Gweinidog Addysg a Sagiliau i
weithredu ar adroddiad yr Athro Smith ac ar yr adroddiad sy'n cael ei baratoi ar hyn o
bryd gan y Farwnes Kay Andrews ar ddiwylliant a thlodi.

¢ Mae gwaith Cadw gyda throseddwyr ifanc ac unedau cyfeirio disgyblion yn cyfrannu at
amcanion addysg a chyflogaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae addysg ac ennill sgiliau a

Tudalen 76



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

chymwysterau yn cael eu cydnabod yn eang yn ffactorau pwysig er mwyn atal plant rhag
troseddu, a lleihau'r tebygolrwydd o aildroseddu yn y tymor hir.

9. Defnyddio Cronfeydd Wrth Gefn

Yn gyffredinol, ni chaiff sefydliadau gronni arian o'r cyllid a roddwn ni iddynt. Yn achos Cyrff
a Noddir gan Lywodraeth Cymru, y rheol safonol yw y gallant gario 2% o'u cymorth grant o
un flwyddyn i'r llall. Fodd bynnag, mae'r Parciau Cenedlaethol wedi cronni cryn arian — ar 31
Mawrth, o gyfrif y cronfeydd sydd gan y tri Pharc y gellir eu defnyddio, mae’'n dod i ryw £6m,
sy'n 28% o gost flynyddol o0 £22m i gynnal gwasanaethau.

Fel y dywedais ar ddechrau'r llythyr hwn, rwy'n hapus iawn i roi mwy o wybodaeth yn 6l y
gofyn.

o f
. \IJ' \\-/‘\'

John Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Diwylliant a Chwaraeon

-

1;'—;,/"_

CC Jocelyn Davies AC, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Tudalen 77



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

John Griffiths AC /AM ’\/ (f?

Y _G\.Neinidog Diwylliant a Chwaraeon ¢
Minister for Culture and Sport ,«J}

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref SF/JG/3477/13

Christine Chapman AC/AM
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cymunedau,
Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol

C Rhagfyr 2013

g § . —
[A'ww\i«,u%, U L’u”(r{"b% /

CYNIGION AR GYFER CYLLIDEB DDRAFFT LLYWODRAETH CYMRU, 2014-15

Diolch am eich llythyr, dyddiedig 29 Hydref, yn dilyn eich cyfarfod Pwyligor ar 24 Hydref lle
roeddwn yn ateb cwestiynau ar y cynigion ar gyfer y gyllideb ddrafft mewn perthynas &
Diwylliant a Chwaraeon.

Am y tro, yr hyn a wnaf yw ymateb i'r pwyntiau penodol yr ydych wedi gofyn am fwy o
wybodaeth yn eu cylch. Byddaf yn hapus i roi gwybodaeth reolaidd ichi yn nes ymlaen ar y
meysydd hynny yr ydych wedi gofyn am gael gwybodaeth amdanynt. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys
yr Adroddiad Blynyddol nesaf ar y Rhaglen Lywodraethu. Caiff hwn ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mai.

Fe ddefnyddiaf rifau’r adrannau yr ydych chi wedi’'u defnyddio yn eich llythyr.

3. Amgueddfeydd, Archifau a Llyfrgelloedd

Fel y dywedais yn y Pwyligor, nid ydym yn gwybod ar hyn o bryd beth yw hyd a lled toriadau
o fewn awdurdodau lleol o ran eu heffaith ar wasanaethau, gan fod yr awdurdodau yn dal i
weithio drwy oblygiadau setliad y gyllideb. Rwy’'n cadw mewn cysylitiad agos &
Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (CLILC) yn hyn o beth, a hefyd &'r Gweinidog
Llywodraeth Leol a Busnes y Llywodraeth. Ac mae fy swyddogion yn parhau i fod mewn
cysylitiad agos & CLILC a gwasanaethau llywodraeth leol.

O ran y berthynas rhwng lefel y cyllid a ddarperir i weithredu Strategaeth Llyfrgelloedd yn
Ysbrydoli 2012-16 a Strategaeth Amgueddfeydd Cymru 2010-2015, a'r deilliannau penodol
y maent wedi'u cyflawni hyd yn hyn, mae CyMAL yn helpu. Mae’n rhoi grant i'r sector
amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd i gyflawni eu strategaethau drwy brosiectau.
Prosiectau yw'r rhain sy'n cyflawni’r union ddeilliannau sydd wedi'u hamlinellu yn y
cynlluniau blynyddol y cytunwyd arnynt fel rhan o strategaethau cenedlaethol. Mae'r

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. John.Griffiths@wales. gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i aiigrﬁfa;df@%)78 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

deilliannau sy’'n ymwneud a chynyddu’r nifer sy’n ymddiddori a gwella mynediad i adnoddau
yn ganolog i strategaethau amgueddfeydd, archifau a llyfrgelloedd. Dyma rai ohonynt:

e Cynyddu'r nifer sy’'n ymddiddori drwy raglen i ddatblygu cynulleidfaocedd cenedlaethol er
mwyn hyrwyddo gwasanaethau;
e Hwyluso mynediad i'r cyhoedd i wasanaethau ar-lein drwy fentrau caffael a digideiddio
cenedlaethol cost-effeithiol, papurau newydd, hanes teuluol a chatalogau/casgliadau:
o Cyfoethogi bywydau pobl drwy weithgareddau penodol:
- Cynyddu nifer y plant a’r bobl ifanc o ardaloedd difreintiedig sy’'n ymddiddori mewn
amgueddfeydd, drwy Kids in Museums a gwaith Comisiynydd Plant Cymru
- Cynllun trafnidiaeth i'w gwneud yn bosibl i ysgolion ymweld & Gwasanaethau
Archifau lleol;
« Cynyddu'r defnydd cymunedol a wneir o gyfleusterau llyfrgelloedd drwy raglen
foderneiddio Llyfrgelloedd Dysgu Cymunedol (mae 6 prosiect llyfrgell wedi cael grantiau
yng Nghymru yn 2013-14).

Nod y rhaglen hon yw datblygu'r arfer o gydweithredu yn lleol, yn rhanbarthol, ac yn
genedlaethol, i arbed arian, newid trefniadaeth sefydliadau, a darparu gwasanaethau mewn
ffordd well sy’n fwy cynaliadwy. Er enghraifft, mae gwaith ar y gweill i gaffael system i reoli
llyfrgelloedd Cymru. Mae'r dystiolaeth yn dangos bod modd arbed tua 30% (cyfalaf a
refeniw) drwy gyd-gaffael system newydd yn hytrach na bod pob awdurdod yn caffael eu
systemau eu hunain. Bydd hefyd yn arwain at ddarparu gwasanaethau ar-lein sy’n fwy cost-
effeithiol, fel e-lyfrau ac e-gylchgronau. Yn nes ymlaen y mis hwn, byddaf yn lansio e-
gylchgrawn newydd ar gyfer 20 o lyfrgelloedd cyhoeddus Cymru. Mae awdurdodau lleol a
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi bod yn cydweithio i drefnu hyn. Mae fy swyddogion yn parhau i
weithio i sicrhau y bydd pawb sy’'n defnyddio llyfrgelloedd cyhoeddus yn gallu defnyddio’r
gwasanaeth hwn yn y dyfodol agos. Mae ein cymorth grant ar gyfer buddsoddi mewn
gwasanaethau llyfrgelloedd lleol yn dod & manteision y gallwn eu mesur. Er enghraifft, drwy
gydleoli llyfrgell gyhoeddus gyda gwasanaeth gwybodaeth y cyngor, caffi menter
gymdeithasol a chapel ym Margoed, sicrhawyd cynnydd aruthrol yn yr ymwelwyr, gyda
164,000 o bobl yn croesir trothwy yn ystod y flwyddyn gyntaf, gwelliant o 134% o gymharu
a'r flwyddyn flaenorol.

4. Yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol

Rwy’'n ymwybodol iawn o’r cyfraniad sylweddol y mae sefydliadau llai yn ei wneud i
amgylchedd hanesyddol Cymru. Roedd hwn yn un o'r ffactorau a gyfrannodd at fy
mhenderfyniad i gyfyngu ar y gostyngiadau i'r gyllideb yn y maes hwn. Byddaf yn parhau i
gadw llygad ar y mater.

5. Y Cyfryngau a Chyhoeddi

Fel Llywodraeth, mae’r diffyg yng nghyfryngau Cymru yn parhau i fod yn destun pryder
mawr inni. Wrth gwrs, nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru yn uniongyrchol gyfrifol am ddarlledu nac
am y diwydiant papurau newydd yng Nghymru. Fodd bynnag, mae gennym bryderon
ynghyich y sefylifa sy'n datblygu am ei bod yn cael cymaint o effaith ar ein gwaith ac ar
gymunedau lleol ledled Cymru.

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi mynegi ei phryderon yn gyson i Lywodraeth y DU am nifer o
faterion mewn perthynas a darlledu ar gyfer y cyhoedd. Mae wedi lobio’r Adran Diwylliant, y
Cyfryngau a Chwaraeon cyn cyhoeddiad Llywodraeth y DU am y Cylch Gwario ym Mehefin
2013 yn pwyso arni i barhau i roi cyllid i S4C. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i ddadlau
dros gynnal gwasanaethau llawn yn Gymraeg ac yn Saesneg, ar lefel genedlaethol a lleol.

Tudalen 79



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

Fel y mae tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig Llywodraeth Cymru i Gomisiwn Silk yn ei adlewyrchu,
rydym o’r farn ei bod yn hanfodol gwella system atebolrwydd sefydliadau darlledu’r DU i'r
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol ac i wylwyr a gwrandawyr Cymru. Y ffordd orau o wneud hyn yw
cryfhau sefylifa Gweinidogion Cymru o ran penodi staff y cyrff sy’n rheoleiddio darlledu yng
Nghymru. Rydym yn cynnig y dylai Gweinidogion Cymru gymeradwyo'r sawl a benodir yn
Aelod Cymru Ymddiriedolaeth y BBC ac yn Gadeirydd ac Aelodau Awdurdod S4C.
Dadleuwyd hefyd y dylai Bwrdd Ofcom gynnwys un aelod sydd a'r cyfrifoldeb penodol dros
gynrychioli barn dinasyddion Cymru, ac y dylai Gweinidogion Cymru gymeradwyo’r aelod
hwn hefyd.

Serch hynny, mae angen inni fod yn realistig a chydnabod bod y ffactorau sy’n gyrru
newidiadau yn y sector cyfryngau masnachol yn rhai grymus, eu bod nhw’n strwythurol ac
yn dechnolegol, ac nad yw’r math o fuddsoddiad ariannol y gall Llywodraeth Cymru ei
fforddio yn mynd i fod yn ddigonol i'w goresgyn. Dim ond mewn meysydd arbenigol, fel a
adlewyrchir yn y Papur Tystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor, y gall ein buddsoddiad ariannol ni wneud
gwahaniaeth. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru, drwy’r Cyngor Llyfrau, yn parhau i roi cyllid ar gyfer
gwasanaeth newyddion ar-lein dyddiol yn y Gymraeg, sef Golwg360 (£200,000), yn ogystal
a chyhoeddiadau newyddion a materion cyfoes Cymraeg. Mae'n cyllido cylchgrawn
newyddion wythnosol Golwg (£73,000), y cylchgrawn materion cyfoes misol Barn (£80,000)
ac erthyglau penodol ym mhapur newydd wythnosol Y Cymro (£18,000). Er y bydd cyllideb
y Cyngor Llyfrau ar gyfer y cylchgronau hyn yn cael ei diogelu i raddau helaeth, mae’r
Cyngor yn ymwybodol eu bod i gyd dan bwysau oherwydd ffactorau hysbysebu a nawdd yn
yr hinsawdd economaidd sydd ohoni.

Ar 11 Hydref, cyhoeddodd Cyngor Llyfrau Cymru fod Golwg Newydd wedi ennill y tendr i
ddarparu gwasanaeth newyddion ar-lein yn Gymraeg am dair blynedd arall. Mae Golwg360
wedi datblygu’'n adnodd hanfodol i siaradwyr Cymraeg, ac mae tua 8,000 yn ymweld a'r
wefan bob dydd. Bydd y cyhoeddiad hwn yn golygu bod modd i'r cwmni adeiladu ar yr hyn y
mae wedi'i gyflawni hyd yma a pharhau i gyflawni’r rol bwysig o ddarparu gwasanaeth
newyddion Cymraeg ar-lein — cyfraniad gwerthfawr i gyflawni Strategaeth y Gymraeg
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae cyllid Llywodraeth Cymru i't Cyngor Llyfrau hefyd yn cyfrannu at gylchgronau Saesneg.
Mae'r cylchgrawn materion cyfoes chwarterol, Planet, yn derbyn £73,000, ac mae atodiad
llyfrau sy’n cael ei gyhoeddi gyda chylchgrawn The Welsh Agenda yn cael grant o £8,000.
Mae dau gylchgrawn llenyddol arall hefyd yn cael cymorth ariannol, sef New Welsh Review
a Poetry Wales.

Gwnaed y gostyngiadau yng nghyllideb Cyngor Llyfrau Cymru ar sail asesiadau o effaith a
gyflwynwyd gan y Cyngor. Byddwn yn cydweithio'n agos a'r Cyngor i sicrhau bod y
gwasanaethau pwysicaf yn cael eu diogelu gymaint & phosibl.

Rwy’n ymwybodol bod pethau wedi mynd yn reit anodd ar orsafoedd radio cymunedol sydd
wedi elwa ar gyllid y Gronfa Radio Cymunedol. Er bod y Gronfa Radio Cymunedol wedi bod
yn hwb sylweddol i'r sector hwn yn amiwg, mae’n werth nodi bod wyth o’r naw gorsaf radio
gymunedol sy’'n derbyn arian o’'r Gronfa yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol hon yn bod cyn i'r
Gronfa gael ei sefydlu. Fel yr esboniais i'r Pwyllgor, roedd y Gronfa i fod i ddod i ben
ddiwedd blwyddyn ariannol 2012-13. Pan wnaed y penderfyniad i ymestyn cyfnod y Gronfa
am flwyddyn arall, cafodd y gorsafoedd wybod gan Lywodraeth Cymru mai am un flwyddyn
yn unig y byddai hyn, er mwyn rhoi cyfle iddynt ddod o hyd i fiynonellau cyllid eraill neu
baratoi i fod yn hunangynhaliol ar 61 Mawrth 2014. Bydd fy swyddogion yn parhau i
gydgysylitu’n agos &'r gorsafoedd er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn gwbl ymwybodol o’
ffynonellau cyllid eraill sy’n bod o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru a'r tu allan iddi.

Tudalen 80



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

6. Chwaraeon ac ymarfer corff

Fel rydych yn ei nodi yn eich llythyr, un o’n prif amcanion yw ei gwneud yn haws i fwy o bobl
gymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon a chynyddu lefelau ymarfer corff er mwyn gwella iechyd y
genedl. Bydd Chwaraeon Cymru yn cydweithio &'m swyddogion dros y misoedd nesaf i
ofalu bod y cyllid sydd ar gael yn cael ei ddefnyddio yn y ffordd fwyaf effeithiol, fel y gallwn
symud yr agenda yn ei blaen. Drwy waith gwerthuso Chwaraeon Cymru ei hun, byddwn yn
gallu rhoi data hanesyddol a data diweddar ichi ar y niferoedd sy’n gwneud chwaraeon ac
ymarfer corff. Byddaf yn hapus i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ichi ar y mater hwn ac ary
deilliannau penodol a welwyd yn sgil camau a gymerwyd gan y Llywodraeth gyfan i godi
lefelau ymarfer corff. Gwnaf hyn yn dilyn adroddiad 2014 o’r cynnydd a wnaed mewn
perthynas a’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu.

Fel y nodais yn fy ymateb ar Amgueddfeydd a Llyfrgelloedd, nid ydym eto’n gwybod beth yw
hyd a lled effaith y toriadau yng nghyllid awdurdodau lleol o ran gwasanaethau hamdden a
chwaraeon lleol, gan fod yr awdurdodau’n dal i weithio drwy oblygiadau setliad y gyllideb.
Rwy'n cadw mewn cysylltiad agos a CLILC ar y materion hyn. Mae Chwaraeon Cymru

hefyd yn cydweithio ag awdurdodau lleol i ddatblygu modelau gweithredu newydd sy'n
lleihau costau swyddfa ac yn cynnal y gwasanaeth i'r cyhoedd ar yr un pryd. Gwneir hyn i
raddau drwy’r cynllun a gynigiwyd i drefnu cymorth fesul ardal. Mae fy swyddogion yn
parhau i fod mewn cysylltiad agos & CLILC a gwasanaethau llywodraeth leol.

Mae'n bleser gen i nodi ein bod wedi llwyddo i ddatblygu cynllun benthyca cyfalaf o £5m i
ariannu cynllun peilot a fydd yn cynnig benthyciadau di-log i awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer
prosiectau chwaraeon a hamdden. Yn ystod y misoedd i ddod, bydd swyddogion yn
cydweithio’n agos ag awdurdodau lleol a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i ddatblygu
meini prawf y cynllun.

Rwy’n edrych ymlaen at weld eich casgliadau a fydd yn deillio o'r ymchwiliad i'r niferoedd
sy’'n cymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon yng Nghymru.

7. Darpariaeth ar gyfer y Bil Teithio Llesol (Cymru)

Mae'r Pwyligor yn iawn i nodi bod cerdded a beicio yn weithgareddau sy’n cefnogi
amcanion ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru ac mae yna ddyraniadau sy’n hybu cerdded a beicio
ac ar gyfer darparu seilwaith cerdded a beicio mewn sawl portffolio.

Mae pwysigrwydd gwaith cydlynus effeithiol yn cael ei gydnabod a bu Gweinidog yr
Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth a minnau yn cydweithio’n agos wrth i'r Ddeddf
Teithio Llesol (Cymru) fynd drwy’r Cynulliad.

Rwy’n gweithio gyda Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth ar y cyllidebau
yn ei phortffolio ac sy’'n darparu ar gyfer datblygiad y Canllawiau Cynllunio a fydd yn helpu i
ddatblygu mapiau’r Liwybrau Presennol a'r Liwybrau Integredig. Yn unol &’r symiau a
nodwyd yn yr asesiad o effaith y Bil, mae £0.3m wedji'i ddyrannu y fiwyddyn nesaf ar gyfer y
gweithgareddau hyn.

Wrth i'r Bil fynd drwodd, fe’i gwnes yn glir bob amser y bydd y gwariant ar seilwaith yn dod
o'r cyllid presennol, ond bellach byddai'n llawer gwell sianelu’r cyllid hwnnw i greu llwybrau
a fyddai'n gwneud gwahaniaeth go iawn gan roi dewis i bobl o ran dull teithio.

Rwyf hefyd yn cydweithio & Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth ynghylch

y cyllidebau cyfalaf o fewn ei phortffolio sy’'n darparu ar gyfer gwariant ar y seilwaith teithio
llesol a gaiff ei greu mewn ymateb i'r Bil.

Tudalen 81



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

Ar hyn o bryd, mae’r Gweinidog Trafnidiaeth yn rhoi cyllid i awdurdodau lleol i ddarparu
seilwaith cerdded a beicio drwy ddwy brif raglen grant. Yn y dyfodol, bydd angen i
awdurdodau lleol ddarparu’r liwybrau hyn i safon benodol sy’n unol &’r canilawiau cynllunio,
a chanolbwyntio ar gysylitedd a hyrwyddo’r defnydd o Iwybrau.

Bydd buddsoddiad gan Weinidogion eraill hefyd yn helpu i weithredu’r Ddeddf Teithio
Llesol. Mae'r Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, er enghraifft, yn cyllido
amrywiaeth o raglenni sy’'n annog pobl i gerdded a beicio fel rhan o ymgyrch hybu iechyd.

Mae'r Cynllun Gweithredu Teithio Llesol, a gaiff ei gyhoeddi ar gyfer ymgynghoriad yn fuan,
yn gynllun sy’n cael ei hybu gan y Llywodraeth gyfan, ac mae’n cynnwys camau ar gyfer
nifer o bortffolios Gweinidogol.

Yr unig adnoddau sydd eu hangen i ddatblygu’'r Cynllun Gweithredu yw costau staff a
chostau man iawn i gynnal digwyddiadau ymgynghori.

8. Gwario i arbed arian yn y pen draw

Yr enghraifft amlycaf o wario er mwyn arbed arian yn y pen draw yn fy mhortffolio i yw
gwario i gynyddu ffitrwydd corfforol pobl. Mae yna dystiolaeth glir i'r cysylitiad rhwng
ffitrwydd corfforol pobl a’u hiechyd a hyd eu bywyd. Roedd hon yn ffactor bwysig imi pan
benderfynais gyfyngu ar y gostyngiadau yng nghyllideb Chwaraeon Cymru. Wrth gwrs, mae
angen inni barhau i wario mewn ffordd fwy effeithiol yn y maes, a gwerthuso i ba raddau
mae arferion ymarfer corff ymhlith pobl ifanc yn parhau’n arferion oes, er mwyn asesu p’un
a yw gwariant yn y maes hwn wir yn arbed arian yn y pen draw drwy leihau gwariant ym
maes iechyd yn nes ymlaen. Mae annog pobl i fyw bywydau iachach yn hirach yn ganolog i
bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru.

Rwyf hefyd am dynnu sylw at elfennau eraill lle gellid gwario i arbed arian yn y pen draw:

e Mae'r rhan fwyaf o feysydd fy mhortfolio (ee chwaraeon, y celfyddydau, llyfrgelloedd,
treftadaeth a mynediad i'r amgylchedd hanesyddol, mwynhau cefn gwlad) yn cyfrannu at
iechyd a lles meddyliol. Mae costau salwch meddwl i economi Cymru yn sylweddol.
Mae'r “Canllaw Maes Anghyflawn Cyntaf i Les mewn Llyfrgelloedd”, a gyhoeddwyd ar 11
lonawr 2013, yn tynnu sylw at gyfraniad llyfrgelloedd i iechyd a lles pobl ledled Cymru.
Mewn llenyddiaeth ar effeithiau diwylliant, cydnabyddir yr ymchwil sy’'n sén amy
manteision iechyd a ddaw yn sgil dilyn gweithgareddau creadigol a diwylliannol drwy
weithdai a therapi celf dan arweiniad artistiaid.

e Mae adroddiad yr Athro Dai Smith ar y Celfyddydau mewn Addysg yn sén amy
dystiolaeth ryngwladol i'r ffaith bod y celfyddydau yn gallu helpu i godi lefelau
cyrhaeddiad addysgol, yn enwedig ymhlith plant o gefndiroedd cymdeithasol-
economaidd is. Gall amgueddfeydd a sefydliadau treftadaeth wneud yr un cyfraniad.
Mae helpu i godi lefelau cyrhaeddiad addysgol pobl yn debygol o gynyddu eu cyfleoedd
bywyd, ac felly yn gallu arbed arian cyhoeddus yn y pen draw. Dyna un o'r rhesymau
pam rwy’n gweithio i gynyddu cyfraniad y celfyddydau a threftadaeth i'r ymgyrch i godi
lefelau cyrhaeddiad addysgol, gan gydweithio a'r Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau i
weithredu ar adroddiad yr Athro Smith ac ar yr adroddiad sy'n cael ei baratoi ar hyn o
bryd gan y Farwnes Kay Andrews ar ddiwylliant a thlodi.

» Mae gwaith Cadw gyda throseddwyr ifanc ac unedau cyfeirio disgyblion yn cyfrannu at
amcanion addysg a chyflogaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae addysg ac ennill sgiliau a

Tudalen 82



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol - Trawsgrifiadau
CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5

chymwysterau yn cael eu cydnabod yn eang yn ffactorau pwysig er mwyn atal plant rhag
troseddu, a lleihau’r tebygolrwydd o aildroseddu yn y tymor hir.

9. Defnyddio Cronfeydd Wrth Gefn

Yn gyffredinol, ni chaiff sefydliadau gronni arian o'r cyllid a roddwn ni iddynt. Yn achos Cyrff
a Noddir gan Lywodraeth Cymru, y rheol safonol yw y gallant gario 2% o’u cymorth grant o
un flwyddyn i'r llall. Fodd bynnag, mae’r Parciau Cenedlaethol wedi cronni cryn arian — ar 31
Mawrth, o gyfrif y cronfeydd sydd gan y tri Pharc y gellir eu defnyddio, mae’n dod i ryw £6m,
sy'n 28% o gost flynyddol o £22m i gynnal gwasanaethau.

Fel y dywedais ar ddechrau’r llythyr hwn, rwy’n hapus iawn i roi mwy o wybodaeth yn 6l y

gofyn.

e & s’

VAL

- “—’_..-__H-

John Griffiths AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Diwylliant a Chwaraeon

CC Jocelyn Davies AC, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Tudalen 83



	Agenda
	2 Bil Tai (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 2 Sefydliad Tai Siartredig Cymru
	3 Bil Tai (Cymru): Cyfnod 1 - Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 3  Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
	5 Trafod adroddiad ynghylch ymchwiliad i lefelau cyfranogiad mewn chwaraeon
	6 Papurau i'w nodi
	CELG(4)-01-14 Papur 5


